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General Questions 
1. Will this RFA come out every year? NIFA does not expect this funding opportunity to be 

available again. 

2. Are there re-submission opportunities if a proposal is not funded the 2022 submission cycle? 
At this time, the NEXTGEN opportunity is not projected to be competed in the future. 

3. When will the winning institutions be announced? NIFA’s peer-review and award process 
usually takes 3-5 months from the proposal due date. 

4. If funded, when would we be expected to start the project? A start date of March 1st, 2023 
would be appropriate. 

5. How many awards will be granted for each Tier? The number of awards for each Tier is to be 
determined 

6. I saw some discrepancies in the fact sheet and the RFA, I believe the RFA is the correct form, 
can you confirm? The Request for Applications takes precedent over any factsheet or help 
document. 

7. Is there a possibility to extend the November deadline for submission? No, there will not be an 
extension of the due date for this program.  

8. How important will the sustainability of the project after the grant is funded be in the 
proposal review? Sustainability is one of the project narrative topics to be addressed and part of 
the evaluation criteria. 

9. Can the proposed project include or fund travel abroad/international travel? Yes, this funding 
opportunity does support international learning experiences, but the important part is that the 
international experiences must align with NEXTGEN goals and areas of focus and also ultimately 
benefit American agriculture.    

10. Could you clarify disciplines in Human Sciences please?  We have defined food, agriculture, 
natural resources, and human sciences in the RFA - Please see Appendix III 

11. Is there a way to get information from USDA agencies associated with ongoing recruitment 
efforts, especially for minority applicants? Please reach out to USDA’s Office of Partnerships 
and Public Engagement at partnerships@usda.gov or  www.usda.gov/partnerships  

12. If we want to collaborate with USDA, what is the best method to find and approach someone 
to develop the connection? Please reach out to USDA’s Office of Partnerships and Public 
Engagement at partnerships@usda.gov or  www.usda.gov/partnerships 

13. Can we collaborate with other, non-USDA agencies and departments? Applicants are 
encouraged to collaborate with U.S. agencies that support FANH disciplines 

14. Will the presentation be posted online? The recording is posted on the NEXTGEN Program 
Resource Page 

mailto:partnerships@usda.gov
http://www.usda.gov/partnerships
mailto:partnerships@usda.gov
http://www.usda.gov/partnerships
https://www.nifa.usda.gov/nextgen-request-application-resources
https://www.nifa.usda.gov/nextgen-request-application-resources


NOTE: Information provided in the Request for Applications, NIFA’s Policy Guide, Uniform Guidance and other federal regulations supersede 
any information presented herein. 

Updated October 17, 2022 

Notice of Intent 
15. Is it possible to submit the Notice of Intent (NOI) and for it to be accepted after September 

16th? Yes, while not required, we encourage applicants to submit an NOI even after the 
suggested due date. 

16. Will there be any feedback on the NOI? We do not have feedback planned for the NOI's. If you 
have specific questions about the RFA, please feel free to send them to 
nifa.workforce@usda.gov  

17. Is there a format or information requested in NOIs? Yes, instructions can be found at the 
NEXTGEN Program Resource Page 

18. Are Notice of Intent (NOI)s submitted through the Sponsored Programs Office? Please consult 
your institutional policies and procedures regarding such submissions.  

Eligibility: Tier Requirements, Partnerships, Eligible Institutions 
19. With the 3 projects per institution guideline, can an institution submit multiple applications in 

one Tier as long as total applications across all Tiers don’t exceed 3? There are no restrictions 
on the number of applications submitted per tier, only per institution. 

20. Is there a limitation on the number of applications that any one institution can submit and/or 
collaborate on?  Eligible institutions are limited in the number of applications they submit (up to 
3 applications) as lead institution, but such limitation does not exist for being part of 
collaborations where the institution is not the lead applicant.  

21. Do partner institutions need to be outside of a common university system? Not as long as each 
institution is an eligible institution, if needed per tier the project is designed for. 

22. Should we go for tier 1 or tier 2, if a co-PI is from other institution? That decision is to be made 
by the institution and project team. The RFA presents minimum requirements per each tier.  

23. The partners for Tiers 2 & 3 need to be other 1890s, 1994s, etc? In the context of the tier, the 
main partners need to be other eligible institutions, but they do not need to be of the same 
eligible institution type. Please see the RFA for guidance. 

24. Can we partner with 1862 land-grant institutions? Yes, as additional partners which means, not 
those required to satisfy tier requirements. It is important to note that some 1862s, in addition 
to their 1862 designation, may also be Hispanic-Serving Institutions (HSIs), Alaskan Native-
Serving (AN) or Hawaiian Native-Serving (HN) Institutions, or be located in the Insular Areas, 
which would make them eligible institutions for this program. It is recommended that you check 
the status of the 1862 institution as you develop the partnership. 

25. Can an eligible institution engage an 1862 or other organizations to assist in development of a 
proposal? Yes, the applicant is encouraged to collaborate with institutions/organizations that 
will allow them to design and produce a successful proposal. See response to #24. 

26. Can we involve our 1862 partners, community-based organizations, industry, and other 
entities that advocate for the future workforce? Yes! 

mailto:nifa.workforce@usda.gov
https://www.nifa.usda.gov/nextgen-request-application-resources
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27. Are community colleges eligible as partners? Yes, and some may also be eligible institutions 
depending on their designation. 

28. Are partnerships with the private industry encouraged? Projects are encouraged to collaborate 
with those entities that will increase and support the development of students in the food, 
agriculture, natural resources, and human sciences. 

29. Will proposals with partnerships be favored over those without? Partnerships are encouraged 
for all projects and required for tiers 2 and 3. 

30. How do I find out if my institution qualifies for this funding opportunity? General institution 
type eligibility for 1890 and 1994s can be found at NIFA’s list of Land-Grant Colleges and 
Universities;  HSIs and ANNH institutions can be found at their respective tab of the Department 
of Education’s Eligibility Matrix 2022; Insular Area Institutions of Higher Education are those 
offering a higher education degrees and are located in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
Guam, American Samoa, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, the Federated 
States of Micronesia, the Republic of the Marshall Islands, the Republic of Palau, or the Virgin 
Islands of the United States. 

31. Could you collaborate with a non-ag type school? projects are encouraged to collaborate with 
those entities that will increase and support the development of students in Food, agriculture, 
natural resources, and human sciences. 

32. Can project directors (PDs) that have two current USDA grants already submit a proposal for 
this program. Is there a limit of grants that a PD can have with USDA? The limit would depend 
on the applicant institutional policies as well as FTE available for the staff member in question. 

33. Do tribes within the same state qualify or do they need to be outside the primary state for tier 
3 applications? No. According to a clear reading of Tier 3, the application must include:  1) a lead 
applicant who is eligible to serve as lead; 2) at least two other eligible institutions across a 
minimum of two states, territories and/or tribal nations. A state is not an eligible institution to 
serve as lead, nor is a Tribal nation (Tribal government) - but could serve as a partner in the 
work. A Tribal college (minority-serving institution) or other eligible institution is eligible to be 
lead. The Tribal college (if they are the lead) will need to include at least two other “eligible 
institutions” (i.e., minority serving institutions) in a Tier 3 application. The focus of the sentence 
is on “eligible institutions” as defined in the RFA, not on states, territories or tribal nations, as 
they are not eligible institutions (minority serving higher education institutions).  

For the purposes of the NEXTGEN Program, tribal nations will be defined as Federally 
Recognized Tribes. Applicants search Federally Recognized Tribes at the following 
link: https://www.bia.gov/service/tribal-leaders-directory/federally-recognized-tribes 

Students 
34. Is the program targeting undergraduates and graduate students? The focus can be on 

undergraduates (including community college level credentials), graduates or both. 

35. Can international students be supported with rewards for scholarships? No, only Citizens, 
Nationals or Permanent Residents of the United States are eligible for scholarships.  

https://www.nifa.usda.gov/map-nifa-land-grant-colleges-universities-1862-1890-1994
https://www.nifa.usda.gov/map-nifa-land-grant-colleges-universities-1862-1890-1994
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ope/idues/eligibility.html#el-inst
https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ope/idues/eligibility.html#el-inst
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bia.gov%2Fservice%2Ftribal-leaders-directory%2Ffederally-recognized-tribes&data=05%7C01%7C%7C4bb34ba8330d4481b2ad08daac82e0f2%7Ced5b36e701ee4ebc867ee03cfa0d4697%7C0%7C0%7C638011975359923959%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QOEzRE8DgBfBBXeSTw4kEvmv8b6B3BC4Gxi12N5ao6k%3D&reserved=0
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36. Are we able to target return-to-work, formerly incarcerated, older adults seeking employment 
folks or should the majority of target population be undergrad/graduate students? Other 
community of learners can be engaged via the project types supported through this program  

37. Can we include last year’s high school students as part of the pipeline of the grant? It is up to 
the project to define and justify the communities that will be part of the project as well as the 
mechanisms to recruit and retain, train, and graduate such students.   

Awards Management: Cost Allowability, Budget Allocation, Scholarship. 
38. Can funds be used for infrastructure development or improvement, such as laboratory 

renovation? No, funds cannot be used for the building or renovation of facilities.   

39. Is there any guidance or restriction on budget sharing with our partner institutions? Please 
consult the Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200.303-333). 2 CFR 200.332 specifically addresses 
Requirements for pass-through entities in regards to sub-awards. Furthermore, NIFA’s Policy 
Guide requires prior written approval by an ADO for distribution of more than 50 percent of the 
total dollars of the award to a sub-recipient or when the subaward is to another Federal Agency. 
Lead applicants should determine if partnership agreement should fall under a subcontract, 
consultant, or fee-for-service.   

40. Can we pay an honorarium to people who will be involved in the project? An honorarium may 
be paid if the expense is determined to be necessary, reasonable and allocable to the award and 
it is paid for services provided to the project. Payment to a federal government employee 
normally is not allowable. 

41. Can funds be used to hire postdoctoral scholars/postdoctoral associates to help with the 
project objectives? Yes, but their salary support must be commensurate to the activities and 
effort working on this project. 

42. Could farming machinery be purchased for a community-based organization partner to be 
used for farm operations and to provide certifications for student interns? This will depend 
upon the project and the acquisition must be to benefit the project and student development, 
not the capacity of the community-based organization; considerations such as leasing vs 
purchase costs; availability of other equipment. 

43. Can we pay collaborators at USDA agencies or centers (such as USDA-ARS) for travel and other 
activities related to this project? This will depend on the project; a determination will need be 
made if the cost is allowable; reasonable and allocable to the award.  When another federally 
funded agency/personnel are involved, the grant dollars are normally not to fund another 
USDA/federal agency. 

44. Are Participant Support costs are allowed? For example, would students' travel or lodging to 
an event be considered Participant costs? Yes; with prior approval from the ADO, if approved in 
the budget or budget revision documents such expenditures would be allowed if they are 
necessary, reasonable and allocable to the project 

45. Could you please clarify regarding the application of the de minimis Rate under ARP projects? 
2 CFR 200.414 (f) Any non-Federal entity that does not have a current negotiated (including 

https://www.nifa.usda.gov/nifa-federal-assistance-policy-guide
https://www.nifa.usda.gov/nifa-federal-assistance-policy-guide
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provisional) rate, except for those non-Federal entities described in appendix VII to this part, 
paragraph D.1.b, may elect to charge a de minimis rate of 10% of modified total direct costs 
(MTDC) which may be used indefinitely. No documentation is required to justify the 10% de 
minimis indirect cost rate. As described in § 200.403, costs must be consistently charged as 
either indirect or direct costs, but may not be double charged or inconsistently charged as both. 
If chosen, this methodology once elected must be used consistently for all Federal awards until 
such time as a non-Federal entity chooses to negotiate for a rate, which the non-Federal entity 
may apply to do at any time. 

46. Are Tier 1 partnership with any other institution allowed: can funds be allocated for the 
partner if the partner is not eligible? Eligible institutions can partner with other organizations 
that enable them to support and prepare diverse students for future careers in agriculture with 
an emphasis on federal sector employment. 

47. Are costs for promoting or providing outreach to reach prospective students allowable? 
Recruitment of prospective student costs that are necessary, reasonable and allocable to the 
project would normally be allowable. 

The Proposal 
48. RFA states should not exceed 20 pages, and it allows for appendices. Does the number of total 

pages including appendices need to be 20 pages or less? Appendices are additional 
attachments to the application. The project narrative must not exceed 20 pages and appendices 
are allowed if they are directly germane to the proposed project. Do not add appendices to 
circumvent the page limit.  

49. In the RFA, "Letters of Commitment" is the only document type listed to submit under "Other 
Attachments"; does that mean that no other documents are required under "Other 
Attachments" for this competition, although the NIFA Guide lists a number of other possible 
documents to submit here? The NIFA application Guide has a complete list of documents that 
must be submitted as part of the application package. 

50. The RFA says we need a clear internal evaluation plan, but also mentions an external 
evaluator. Can you clarify? We consider an external evaluator an entity not involved in the 
design or execution of the project. Such individual(s) may be from the same institution or an 
outside institution or organization.  

51. I noticed there is a NIFA NEXT GEN program evaluation.  How will this integrate with our 
program evaluator? USDA-sponsored metaevaluation of all the projects supported by the 
NEXGEN program will be conducted and announced at a later time. Each project is expected to 
evaluate its own performance and collect, at minimum, the data point and metrics listed in the 
RFA. 

52. Is there a percentage of the budget that should be allocated to evaluation? Typically, up to 5% 
of the funds may be used for evaluation costs.   

53. Do you recommend a particular effort percentage to administer the Project? There is no such 
recommendation other than such effort must be justifiable, allocable and necessary for the 
project’s success.  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/section-200.403
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54. Can we create educational programs (eg. Certificate, Bachelor’s degrees) through this grant 
opportunity? Curriculum development may be supported through the Budget allowability 
described on page 21 of the RFA, but projects must not be centered around such activity.  

55. Does USDA have regional offices we can collaborate with on building out the pathways to 
USDA employment? Yes, USDA had field offices across the country. At this time, please reach 
out to Dr. Ahlishia Shipley, for guidance on coordination with USDA.   

56. Can we include students from biology, chemistry and engineering in this project?  We have 
defined food, agriculture, natural resources, and human sciences in the RFA - Please see 
Appendix III 

57. May we include the three types of projects in one sole proposal? Yes, you can for Tier 1 and 3 
and you must if you are applying to Tier 3 

58. Is there number limit for project co-PIs? No 

59. Is this program going to replace any existing Grant Program? No. 

60. Is it allowable to include training for existing workforce/agricultural professionals for example 
training for career advancement, new opportunities in the workforce, etc.? Not through this 
program. The goal of NEXTGEN is to raise awareness and recruit individuals to the FANH 
workforce. 
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